ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COW TTEE
April 28, 2003
3:33 p.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Scott Ogan, Chair

Senat or Thomas Wagoner, Vice Chair
Senat or Fred Dyson

Senat or Ral ph Seeki ns

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Kim El ton

Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 143
"An Act relating to the Al aska coastal nanagenent program and to
policies and procedures for consistency reviews and the
rendering of consistency determi nations under that program
relating to the functions of coastal resource service areas;
creating an Alaska Coastal Program Evaluation  Council;
elimnating the Alaska Coastal Policy Council; annulling certain
regulations relating to the Al aska coastal nanagenent program
relating to actions based on private nuisance; relating to
zoning within a third class borough covered by the Alaska
coast al managenent program and providing for effective dates.”
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BI LL NO. 88
"An Act relating to standards for forest resources and
practices; and providing for an effective date."”

MOVED SB 88 OUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 56
"An Act relating to sport fishing license fees and anadronous
ki ng sal mon tag fees for residents of Yukon, Canada."
SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON

SB 143 - See Resources m nutes dated 4/23/03 and 4/ 25/ 03.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- April 28, 2003



SB 88 - No previous action to record.
SB 56 - No previous action to record.
W TNESS REG STER

M. Marv Smith

Lake and Peni nsul a Bor ough

PO Box 495

Ki ng Sal nron, AK 99613

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed nunerous concerns about SB 143
and urged nenbers to slow its progress down

Ms. Paul a Terrell

Al aska Marine Conservati on Counci l

No address provided

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Uged nenbers to hold SB 143 for the
interimfor further work

Ms. Marty Rutherford

Department of Natural Resources

400 W I | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 143 for the Admi nistration

M. Breck Tostevin

Depart ment of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions about SB 143

M. Pat Glvin

Departnent of Natural Resources

400 W1 | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions about tribal councils in
relation to SB 143

M. Brian Hove

Staff to Senator Seekins

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 88 for the sponsor

M. Jeff Jahnke
Di vision of Forestry

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 28, 2003



Departnent of Natural Resources

400 W I | oughby Ave.

Juneau, AK 99801-1724

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions about SB 88

M. Al bert Pagh

4 Star Lunber

2849 Par ks Hi ghway

Fai r banks, AK 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Believes SB 88 is unnecessary

M. Rick Smeriglio

Board of Forestry nenber

Seward, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 88

M. Eric Pyne

Boreal Forest Products &

| nternational Wodcutters Associ ati on
PO Box 82694

Fai r banks, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 88

Ms. Leslie Gustafson

White Spruce Enterprises, Inc.
10293 A d Val dez Trail

Sal cha, AK 99714

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 88

M. Robert Ot

Tanana Chi efs Conference

122 First Ave.

Fai r banks, AK 99701

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 88

M. Janmes V. Drew

4725 Vil l anova Dr.

Fai r banks, AK 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 88

Ms. Jan Dawe

Al aska Boreal Forest Council

PO Box 84530

Fai r banks, AK 99709

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 88

M. Chris Stark

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 28, 2003



PO Box 80543

Fai r banks, AK 99708

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports SB 88
ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-34, SIDE A

CHAI R SCOIT OGAN called the Senate Resources Standing Conmittee
nmeeting to order at 3:33 p.m Al nenbers were present except
Senat or Stevens who arrived shortly thereafter.

SB 143- COASTAL NMANAGEMENT PROGRANS

CHAI R OGAN announced that he intended to finish taking public
testinmony today on SB 143. He said he is confortable with the
l egislation as is, but will abide by the wish of the commttee
regarding noving it fromcommttee.

SENATOR WAGONER infornmed nenbers that he planned to offer an
anmendnent .

CHAIR OGAN called the first w tness.

MR. MARV SM TH, Conmmunity Devel opnent Coordinator for the Lake
and Peninsul a Borough, said he is not aware of the change the

proposed anendnent will make. He thanked all of those involved
for making significant changes to the bill. He believes the
comm ttee substitute is nuch better, however, he still has a few

concerns about the | egislation.

MR SMTH said Section 14 limts communities too nmuch. It is
guestionable how many of +the Lake and Peninsula Borough's
policies can be carried forward or used at all. The Borough's
specific concerns are protecting subsistence and comerci al
recreational use of the area. Another concern is that DEC w ||
have total control over air and water quality, which he believes
is too far reaching. The 90-day limt in Section 22 will put the
Borough in jeopardy if it requests additional information from
the contractor and the contractor elects not to conply. He said
hol ding public hearings in 16 villages wthin the Lake and

Peninsula Borough wll be very expensive. He hopes that
additional funding will be nade available for that purpose. He
asked commttee nmenbers to "slow this bill down."

M5. PAULA TERRELL, representing the Alaska Marine Conservation
Council (AMCC), urged the conmttee to consider the fact that

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- April 28, 2003



the Coastal Zone Managenent Program is very conplex. Wile

changes have been made to the legislation, problens still exist,
specifically with the broadness and vagueness of the bill and
the inpacts it will have on the coastal communities. She said

she does not doubt there are problenms with Al aska's coastal
managenent program but to pass legislation wth such sweeping
inpact is "throwing the baby out with the bathwater." She asked
the commttee to bring a group of stakeholders together,
i ncluding coastal comunities, industry, and agencies, to |ook
at sone of the problens during the interim She believes that
would create a win-win situation and avoid the controversy
surrounding this |egislation.

CHAIR OGAN said the last Admnistration pronoted stakehol der
groups but he burned out on that approach because when it was
used for a lease sale in Cook Inlet, it involved the nost
extensive public process ever used for a | ease sale. He stated:

I f sonmebody didn't |ike the results on it they had a
st akehol ders' process that was totally outside of the
bounds of statute and regulation and the feel good
thing that delayed the project and cost everybody a
whol e bunch of noney and they ended up doing it anyway
but 1'"mnot a big fan of stakehol der groups.

M5. TERRELL said there is a difference in that the entire
purpose of the coastal managenent program is to draw in and
coordinate with people from diverse groups and interests. She
pointed out the coastal communities want devel opnent. However,
they want to be able to control their destinies in how that
devel opnment is pl anned.

CHAI R OGAN announced that with no further participants, public
testinmony was closed. He asked Ms. Rutherford to address the
comm ttee.

M5. MARTY RUTHERFORD, representing the Departnent of Natural

Resources (DNR) and the Administration, told nenbers that M.

Breck Tostevin of the Departnment of Law, M. Pat Galvin, the
past director of the D vision of Governnental Coordination
(D&C), and M. Randy Bates, the newy appointed coastal program
coordinator with DNR, were acconpanying her and available to
answer questions.

M5. RUTHERFORD told nenbers that a clarifying anendnent to
Section 11 was distributed.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 28, 2003



SENATOR BEN STEVENS noved to adopt Amendnent 1, which reads as
fol | ows.

AMENDMENT 1

OFFERED | N THE SENATE RESOURCES COW TTEE
TGO SB 143

Page 8, line 10:

Del ete "a new subsecti on”
| nsert "new subsecti ons"

Page 8, line 13, following "purposes.” through I|ine
22:

"For those purposes only,

(1) the issuance of permts, «certifications,
approvals, and authorizations by the Departnent of
Envi ronnment al Conservation establishes consistency
with the Al aska coastal managenent program for those
activities of a proposed project subject to those
permts, certifications, approval s, and
aut hori zati ons;

(2) for a consistency review of an activity that
does not require a Departnment of Envi r onnment al
Conservation permt, certification, approval , or
aut hori zation because the activity 1is a federal
activity or the activity is located on federal |ands
or the federal outer continental shelf, consistency
with AS 46.03, AS 46.04, AS 46.09, and AS 46.14 and
the regul ati ons adopted under those statutes shall be
established on the basis of whether the Departnent of
Environnental Conservation finds that the activity
satisfies the requirenments of those statutes and
regul ati ons.

(c) For a consistency review described in (b)(2)
of this section, the departnent, in addition to its
review under AS 46.40.096 of all other enforceable
policies applicable to the project, shall coordinate
with the Departnment of Environnental Conservation and
issue the Departnent of Environnental Conservation's
finding of whet her the activity satisfies the
requi renents of the statutes and regul ati ons descri bed
in (b)(2) of this section.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- April 28, 2003



SENATOR DYSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

M5. RUTHERFORD explained that the Admnistration received
comments from several coastal districts expressing a lot of
concern about the third sentence of Section 11. Their concern
was that Section 11 prevented any district enforceable policies
on the Quter Continental Shelf. That was not the intent, nor the
effect of Section 11 in the Adm nistration's opinion. However,
in order to clarify that coastal districts can have enforceable
policies applicable to federal activities, activities on federal
| ands, and activities in the OQuter Continental Shelf, the
Adm ni stration prepared Amendnent 1 to clarify that DEC s air

| and and water quality standards are not the exclusive standards
that would apply to those types of consistency reviews.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Tostevin to testify.

MR. BRECK TOSTEVIN, Departnent of Law (DOL), told nenbers that
Amendnment 1 amends Section 11 of the bill. Section 11 currently
provides that AS 46.03, AS 46.04, AS 46.09, AS 46.14, and the
regul ati ons adopted under those statutes constitute the
exclusive enforceable policies of the Al aska coastal managenent
program for those purposes. The anendnent inserts additiona
| anguage, which states, "for +those purposes only" and is
followed by two paragraphs. The first paragraph deals wth
activities that DEC permts. The issuance of a DEC permt would
constitute consistency for those purposes for those activities.

The second paragraph discusses projects that involve a federal
activity, an activity on federal lands, or on the Quter
Continental Shelf where DEC has no permtting authority. For
consi stency review purposes, DEC would apply these air, |and and
water quality statutes and regulations for those activities. It
then creates a new section (c) that provides that for those
federal consistency reviews, DNR would, in addition to its
review under the consistency review statute (AS 46.40.096),
coordinate with DEC and DEC woul d nmake the finding with respect
to the nore narrow purposes of the activities subject to the DEC
standards. He stated this is a clarifying anmendnment to make sure
that district enforceable policies could be established on CQuter
Conti nental Shelf activities.

CHAIR OGAN asked if (b)(2) is the language on lines 11 through
17 of the bill.

MR TOSTEVIN said the insertion starts on line 13 and ends on
line 22.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- April 28, 2003



SENATOR LI NCOLN asked Ms. Rutherford if Amendnent 1 will address
M. Smith's concerns about Section 14 in regard to it limting
subsi stence and recreational activities too nuch.

M5. RUTHERFCORD said she does not believe it wll. She said other
districts indicated they want surety that |ocal enforceable
policies could be applied to federal lands and the CQuter

Continental Shelf. She said she would speak to what is wthin
the paraneters of Section 14, the test, for l|ocal enforceable
pol i ci es.

CHAIR OGAN interrupted M. Rutherford and asked that the
di scussion be kept to Amendnent 1 at this tinme. He noted that
with no further discussion or objection, Anendnent 1 was
adopt ed.

MS. RUTHERFORD sai d Senator Lincoln's question brings her to the
next item she wanted to discuss, that being the paraneters of
the Section 14 test for developing |ocal enforceable policies.
She was asked by the House Resources Committee last week to
provi de six exanples of sone district enforceable policies that
met the requirenent of that test. She said she provided Senate
Resources Committee nenbers with nine exanples. Those exanples
neet the requirenents of Section 14 but where applicable, a
district may need to provide sone support - an analysis and
justification within that district plan on how the policy neets
the matter of local concern. As is the current situation, the
| ocal policy cannot unreasonably restrict or exclude a use of
state concern, for exanple oil and gas activities. She said it
is also inportant to note that these exanple policies are based
upon existing district enforceable policies. Sone of the
| anguage in them was changed to neet the test enbedded in
Section 14. Those policies were also selected based upon the
current state and federal regulatory regine, recognizing that
they currently fill areas that are not otherw se adequately
addressed by state or federal law. Should the state or federal
| aw ever expand to address those issues, those district
enforceable policies would have to be repealed. She said those
policies were developed by the team who worked on this
| egi slation and they were reviewed by the Departnent of Law and
the Governor's Ofice.

M5. RUTHERFORD added the Murkowski Adm nistration feels, after
| ooking at these district enforceable policies, that the
districts put a great deal of effort into establishing them The
Adm nistration's strategy is to have the resource agencies

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- April 28, 2003



review all of the local enforceable policies as they are being
rewitten to be nore concise and non-duplicative, as well as to
see if any should be developed into statew de standards. She
said the policies denonstrate that districts have a great dea
of room to develop policies that address issues of |[ocal
concern.

CHAIR OGAN referred to Section 14(2)(A) and (B), which require
plans to be clear and concise and to use precise, prescriptive
and enforceable |anguage and asked if that is an oxynoron. He
noted that is a major departure fromcurrent statute.

M5. RUTHERFORD said she understood Chair Ogan's point but that
is the goal

CHAI R OGAN asked what will happen if the plan is not "sensitive
to devel opnent™ [l anguage on page 10, |line 24].

M5. RUTHERFORD said the intent is to have the policies focus on
areas of specific concern about the negative inpact of
devel opnent on a resource.

CHAIR OGAN referred to |anguage on page 10, lines 27 and 28,
whi ch reads, "of unique concern to the coastal resource district
as denonstrated by |ocal usage or scientific evidence," and said
he interprets that to nman we need to be sensitive to
devel opment and sensitive to | ocal concerns and bal ance the two.

M5. RUTHERFORD agreed and added the district also has to nake a
case that the concern is specific to that district, for exanple
around an area used for subsistence egg gathering.

SENATOR DYSON said he personally believes it is always good to
have the stakeholders involved in the process. He thought the
Chair was speaking to an el aborate process, sonetines referred
to as a stakeholder process, that adds a great deal of
conplexity. He asked Ms. Rutherford for assurance that the bil
as anended gives all of the relevant parties who live or work in
the area a place and tine to have a voice in the decision naking
process.

M5. RUTHERFORD said the sinple answer is yes. The CS assures
that the current structure of the coastal nanagenent program
will continue. That nmeans the districts will be able to propose
to the comm ssioner of DNR | ocal enforceable policies that neet
this test, with the exception of those activities within the
permtting purview of DEC for air, land, and water quality

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 9- April 28, 2003



standards. This bill sets those aside as being deened consistent
once DEC determnes those projects have nmet DEC s standard
requirenents.

SENATOR DYSON asked M. Rutherford to review what the DEC
process allows for air and water control. He added that he wants
to make sure that everyone is clear that public input is not
di m ni shed i n any way.

MS. RUTHERFORD said the DEC permtting authorization process has
regular intervals for public participation.

SENATOR DYSON asked for a description of the intervals during
whi ch rel evant stakehol ders have an opportunity for input and to
chal | enge or appeal .

MR. BRECK TOSTEVIN said all DEC permts require public notice.
When an applicant applies for a permt, DEC publishes a notice
and the public has an opportunity to comrent. Once the permt is
issued, the public can request an admnistrative adjudicatory
hearing concerning the permt. If a party is still aggrieved,
that party can appeal to the court.

SENATOR DYSON asked if, in theory, this legislation elimnates
duplication in the process. He also asked M. Rutherford to
describe the remai nder of the process.

[CHAIR OGAN interjected to note that Representative Kerttula had
joined the conmttee.]

M5. RUTHERFORD said the intent of +the legislation is to
elimnate the duplication that currently exists wthin the
program and the often very elongated tinefrane associated wth
the nore conplex DEC permts, such as air and contingency
pl anni ng. She then said, regarding the remainder of the process,
once a district goes through its own process to deternm ne what
it wants to propose to DNR as a l|local enforceable policy, that
triggers DNR s review process. Like DEC, that process is laid
out in statute and regulation and contains a very extensive
public notice process. That is followed by an admnistrative
appeal process and judicial review.

SENATOR DYSON commrented the notification process is worrisone to
him Unless soneone is paying attention to the fine print in a
newspaper and knows where and when to look, it is easy to
overl ook. He asked if DNR will use the best nmedia available in

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- April 28, 2003



an area, sonetines AM radio, to let the public know that an
application is in process.

M5. RUTHERFORD said DNR does not always use public radio, but
its notices have a large circulation through newspapers. She
said in this case, DNR would be working directly with the
districts. In her experience, the districts have been good at
assuring that their residents are aware of what is happeni ng and
that they have input.

SENATOR DYSON asked if DNR keeps the information updated on a
web page or through electronic nedia. He also asked if
st akehol der groups could ask in advance to be notified if they
were particularly interested in activities in a particul ar area.

M5. RUTHERFORD said DNR and DGC use the web extensively; DNR
accepts comments through the web and has extensive distribution
lists for notification purposes.

CHAIR OGAN acknow edged that DNR does a great job of
notification.

SENATOR SEEKINS said he assunes there is always an opportunity
for any interested party to conmment but not to have a vote or
veto power. He said that is where the stakeholder process
concerns him The state has a statutory and regul atory process
designed to gather public coment in the best possible way. In
addition, he pointed out the stakehol der process sonetines ends
up being a non-statutory process where people are invited to the
t abl e because:

...they are concerned about Mther Earth in total and
think that at that point by being able to not partake
in the public process that is statutory, to be able to
have a vote in a non-statutory process and what |I'm
hoping is that we don't have any of that in this
| egi slation, that the statutory public process is all

that we have and that we don't cone in wth these

delay tactics called - so called stakehol der groups.
Is there any chance that under these regulations and
this bill we're going to see the ability for the non-

statutory process to conme up?
MS5. RUTHERFORD said she believes the Senator can rest assured

this program will rely upon the statutory and regulatory public
process that wll allow for an extensive and adequate public

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- April 28, 2003



process but it does not enbed any kind of a stakehol der process
into the deci sion-naking.

CHAI R OGAN commented that a future adm nistration could do that,
as has been done in the past.

SENATOR SEEKINS said that is why he was trying to assure that
discretion is elimnated as nuch as possible. He then asked if
the other political subdi vi si ons  of the state have a
responsibility to notify their residents.

M5. RUTHERFORD said every municipality, as well as the coasta
resource service areas, has requirenents for public notice. She
said the process is a "ground-up" process. She added the
redundancy is appropriate because it allows the districts the
opportunity to have a dialog with their own constituents. As it
noves up to the decision-making level in state governnent,
anot her public process allows for broader participation.

M5. RUTHERFORD then said she would like to clarify sone
confusion expressed about whether this legislation wll require
a remwite of a lot of different standards. The reality is it
does not require a rewite of any standards other than the
coastal managenent statew de standards and |ocal plans. It does
not require a rewite of DEC air, land and water quality
standards. It does not require a rewite of DNRs Iland
managenent regul ati ons. She noted this bill retains the
programis basic structure, including the coordination function
when a project is proposed. It allows the districts to
coordi nate decision-making through the consistency review It
also retains the districts at the table. Wth the exception of
DEC s air, land and water quality standards, it allows |ocal
enforceable policies. It does not dimnish an incorporated
municipality's Title 29 planning and zoning authorities. Section
28 contains a clause to that effect.

CHAI R OGAN t hanked Ms. Rutherford for her review

SENATOR ELTON asked if local comunities will have a dimnished
voice in sonme areas because, wth the renoval of DEC from the
purview, their voices cannot speak in the same way they have in
the past to the DEC conponent.

M5. RUTHERFORD said that is a good question and acknow edged
that a lot of confusion remains on this issue. The elimnation
of activities under the purview of DECs air, land and water
quality standards are outside of the districts' ability to

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- April 28, 2003



devel op local enforceable policies that increase the air, |and,
and water quality standards in sone fashion. However, this bil

does not in any way restrict incorporated Title 29
muni ci palities from devel oping ordinances that address that,
much |ike the CBJ has wetlands ordi nances. Title 29

municipalities are conpletely free to develop ordinances that
deal with wetlands policies. The only distinction is that the
muni cipalities cannot then take those ordinances, enbed them in
| ocal enforceable policies that are part of the coasta
managenent program and inpose those on federal | ands.

SENATOR ELTON said the wetlands policy issue is of special
concern to the CBJ. He sees this bill as preenpting the tortuous
process the CBJ went through to establish wetland categories if
federal agencies are involved.

M5. RUTHERFORD said the CBJ adopted those policies through its
ordinance process so its Title 29 authorities are stil
retained. The only thing the CBJ could not do under this bill is
to enbed those air, land, and water quality standards. Many of
those mght be siting standards, which are sonewhat different
than those activities within the purview of the DEC standards.
The CBJ is not allowed to take those ordinances, if they are
pertinent to activities managed by DEC, and make them into | ocal
enforceable policies. The only place where there may then be a
gap for Juneau would be if, in fact, there were federal |ands
within its boundaries where the CBJ inposes the standard that
does capture an air, |land, and water quality nanaged activity.

SENATOR ELTON asked, "...so, if, in fact, this was happening on
Tongass National Forest Iland, then Corps trunps nunicipa
or di nance?"

M5. RUTHERFORD said DEC trunps. DEC standards will continue to
apply to activities on federal |ands within state boundaries and
the Quter Continental Shelf. A local district could not devel op
a standard that goes beyond DEC s air, land, and water quality
st andar ds.

SENATOR ELTON asked Ms. Rutherford if she has spoken to anyone
at the CBJ about that. He said her interpretation seens to be
"rosier"” than the CBJ's interpretation.

M5. RUTHERFORD said she spoke to the planning director about two

hours ago and gave him her interpretation and drew his attention
to the section of the bill that she believes is applicable. She

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- April 28, 2003



suggested that he review that wth the CBJ Departnent of Law and
offered to discuss it further.

SENATOR ELTON asked what Forest Practices Act activities would
be excl uded from consi stency revi ew.

M5. RUTHERFORD said wunder the current program the Forest
Practices Act standards and permt authorities are stand-al one.
Once those best managenent practices and standards enbedded in
the act are net, the project is deened consistent wth coasta
managenent. She explained, "So, basically what we've done is
we' ve taken the Forest Practices Act nodel and sinply inposed it
on the DEC air, land and water quality standards...."

SENATOR ELTON asked if the regimes for DEC and the Forest
Practices Act are essentially the sane.

MS. RUTHERFORD said that is correct.
SENATOR ELTON asked M. Rutherford if she anticipates any

problems in looking at projects in total. He said one of his
concerns is that if the state uses a bifurcated DEC process and

then a consistency review process, it wll only ook at a piece
of the pie.

M5. RUTHERFORD said if DEC has a single agency review that only
regards its standards, it wll nmake the sole determnation.
However, nornmally there are nultiple permits that include other
agenci es and, because | ocal enforceable policies will be able to
address activities of a project so that even if the DEC permt
is the only one, DEC will have to review for consistency wth

the local enforceable policy. Amendnment 1 clarifies that issue.
She said nost of the time nmultiple permit agencies are involved.

SENATOR ELTON questioned whether an anendnent has been drafted
to deal with the 90-day issue that is causing angst anong nmany
communities.

M5. RUTHERFORD said she believes Senator Wgoner plans to
propose such an anendnent. She said the Adm nistration has taken
a look at it and is confortable with it.

SENATOR ELTON asked Ms. Rutherford if she has spoken to anyone
fromthe nunicipalities who supports this |egislation.

M5. RUTHERFORD said she has heard from a lot of the districts
that they are pleased with the progression from the original

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- April 28, 2003



| egislation to the commttee substitute but she does not believe
it is fair to say any of them are happy about the |egislation.
They are confortable with the current program Conversely, she
has heard a lot of criticism from the developnent community
about the conplexity and vagueness of the program and because
the DEC permtting process is lengthy and within the consistency
review. She said it is her opinion that while this bill neither
satisfies any of the districts nor satisfies all of the
devel opnent community, it is in the mddle of the spectrum of
what i s acceptable.

CHAIR OGAN said he believes that nunicipalities need to be
m ndful of the fact that revenue sharing is decreasing and the
state's revenue streamw ||l be dimnished in the future.

M5. RUTHERFORD said that is an excellent point. One of the
criticisnms by the developnment comrunity is that new investnent
has been slow in com ng because the state is viewed as having a
very uncertain, lengthy and conplex permtting system

TAPE 03-34, SIDE B

M5. RUTHERFORD said the intent of this legislation is to
streamline that process to nake it clearer and to provide a
timeline.

SENATOR ELTON commented that a lot of people listening to this
debate believe it involves nmunicipalities against devel opers. He
said he does not believe any coastal comunities want to del ay
devel opnent proj ects. The coast al communities have Dbeen
especially "hamrered" by changes in the fishing and tinber
i ndustri es. He said he believes the bigger concern for
municipalities is to decide what kind of devel opnment they want.
They want to be involved in changes that fit their long-term
pl ans.

CHAI R OGAN suggested that there is already a process in place to
get permts through agencies so the CZM process i s redundant.

M5. RUTHERFORD said she was not suggesting that the | ocal
municipalities or coastal resource areas were opposed to
devel opnment. She said the devel opnment community is saying the
coastal managenent programis overly conpl ex.

4:25 p.m

SENATE RES COW TTEE -15- April 28, 2003



SENATOR LINCOLN referred to an e-mail from the Port G aham
Village Council in which Chief Patrick Norman questioned whet her
the language in Section 37 places a |imt on villages. Chief
Nor man wr ot e:

There is a limt placed on our villages that we could
only express our concerns only within 2 mles from our
village. Currently our village is wthin an area
meriting special attention under the Kenai Peninsula
Coastal Managenent Plan. The area enconpasses all of
our subsistence use areas and this |anguage wll
restrict us way too nuch.

She asked Ms. Rutherford to speak to that concern.

M5. RUTHERFORD pointed out the only anmendnent to the existing
program in Section 37 changes the term "program’ to "plan" so
this limtation is already in the existing program It is only
pertinent to coastal resource service areas, not to incorporated
districts. Port Gaham is located wthin the Kenai Peninsula
Bor ough

SENATOR LI NCOLN said the Port G aham Village Council reads that
to say it is outside of the two-mle limt. She asked if the
council will have a voice in the managenent pl an.

M5. RUTHERFORD said she believes it does not affect them because
they are within an incorporated area, not a coastal resource
service area.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to a letter from the village of
Mekoryuk. That |etter expresses concern that this bill threatens
traditional subsistence hunting and fishing areas. The village
questions whether traditional primary governnments are recognized
under this |egislation.

M5. RUTHERFORD said there are several answers to that question

First, unlike the original SB 143, the CS maintains the current
program including the statewide standards that enbody the
habitat standard. Therefore, a statewi de habitat standard w ||
apply. Second, this bill wmkes no changes to the role of
traditional IRAs or traditional councils. She asked M. @Glvin
to explain their current role.

VR PATRI CK GALVI N, former director of DGC, told nenbers

Mekoryuk is located within a coastal resource service area. The
section Senator Lincoln referred to in the bill 1is current

SENATE RES COW TTEE -16- April 28, 2003



statute, regarding the role the village plays in the planning
for that area. Wen the coastal resource service area 1S

developing a plan for the entire region, the tribal council is
specifically allowed to voice its desired enforceable policies
within the village. If a village has been incorporated, the
state recognizes the nunicipality - either the borough or the
city.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if a village is not in a nmunicipality or a
borough, the short answer is the traditional council wll be
recogni zed. She asked if that is addressed in this bill

MR. GALVIN said that is correct. He noted the |anguage Senator
Lincoln read from the letter is the section in current statute
that recognizes the traditional council as the decision naking
body.

CHAIR OGAN noted that he planned to hold the bill in commttee
for another hearing to accommpbdate the people who want to
testify.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS referred to Section 12 on page 8 and asked
if under the new proposals there wll be a plan review every ten
years, while the existing | anguage has no revi ew process.

M5. RUTHERFORD said that |anguages that plans be reviewed and
resubmtted every ten years. She explained there is no such
requi renent under the current program

SENATOR BEN STEVENS asked if there has been any coasta
managenent plan revi ew since 1981.

M5. RUTHERFORD said no review requirenment exists but nmany of the
districts wupdated their plans nultiple tinmes at their own
request since they were initially inplenented.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said he applauds Ms. Rutherford's attenpt to
rewite definitive standards for review and approval .

SENATOR WAGONER noved to adopt Anmendnent 2, which reads as
fol | ows.

AMENDMENT 2

On Page 15, line 3
| nsert:

SENATE RES COW TTEE -17- April 28, 2003



(4) if the applicant fails to respond in witing
to a witten request for additional information within
14 days of receipt of such request;

SENATOR ELTON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
M5. RUTHERFORD said the Admnistration is confortable wth

Amendnent 2. During the 90-day review, if an applicant fails to
respond in witing to a request for information within 14 days,

it allows the tineline to be tolled wuntil the applicant
responds. In other words, if an applicant chooses to ignore a
request for additional i nformati on, the permt wll not

automatically be deemed consi stent.

CHAIR OGAN noted that an Al aska Minici pal League representative
nodded affirmatively in support of Amendnent 2.

SENATOR ELTON said the amendnent nmay need to go a step further
and say if the applicant fails to respond conpletely.

M5. RUTHERFORD said, in her opinion, the bill already allows
i nherent discretion to determ ne whether a response is adequate
to the request. This sinply allows the agency to toll it should

it choose to.

SENATOR ELTON suggested the Chair speak to the Departnent of Law
about that matter. He then asked if "tolled" neans a deadline
wi |l be suspended until a response is received.

MS. RUTHERFORD said that is correct.

SENATOR ELTON questioned how that will work since the amendnent
is placed in the legislation so that the 90-day tineline is
renoved.

M5. RUTHERFORD sai d under Section 22(0)(2), an applicant can ask
that the clock be held while additional information is being
prepared. The project does not have to be termnated and the
process restarted. The new section (4) just allows the agency
to also stop the clock so that the entire review does not have
to be restarted if an applicant has not provided adequate
i nformation.

CHAIR OGAN asked if this can be used in a dilatory way if the
amendnent is adopted.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 18- April 28, 2003



M5. RUTHERFORD said she supposes it is possible that DNR coul d
choose to use it in some inappropriate fashion but the reality
is everyone is trying to get project reviews off of their desks
as quickly as possible to prevent a backl og.

CHAI R OGAN asked, using the "evil conmm ssioner theory," whether
protections can be put into that bill so that theory does not
pl ay out and del ay projects.

M5. RUTHERFORD said that same comm ssioner could determ ne every
project inconsistent and that would be worse than tolling a
project so the danger exists anyway.

SENATOR ELTON said it seens clear to himthat the anendnent does
not address tolling. The language in (0) on page 14 says the
time limtations in (n) of this section do not apply to a
consistency review. It does not say the tine limtations are
suspended or tolled. The 90-day provision is in (n).

M5. RUTHERFORD said the intent was to have (2) and (3) be a tol
but she would look into it.

SENATOR BEN STEVENS said according to the |anguage on page 12,
lines 28-31, it says the project applicant, the resource agency
or the affected coastal resource district can make the inquiry
for the 14-day response. He asked how many tines they can do
t hat .

M5. RUTHERFORD said she believes the reference to (d)(3) is the
request for an elevation. |f soneone does not |ike the decision

that person has the opportunity for a hearing to discuss
concerns. It is a process enbedded in the program to hopefully
prevent litigation.

CHAIR OGAN noted he would |eave Anmendnent 2 on the table to
await an answer to Senator Elton's question.

CHAI R OGAN announced a brief at-ease. Wen he reconvened the
neeting, he announced the commttee would next hear SB 88 and
woul d not take up SB 56 today due to |ack of tine.

SB 88- FOREST RESOURCES & PRACTI CES STANDARDS

MR. BRI AN HOVE, staff to Senator Seekins, sponsor of SB 88, gave
the foll owi ng sponsor statenent.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -19- April 28, 2003



This bill revises the riparian nmanagenent standards of
the Forest Resources Practices Act (FRPA) for Region
1l by strengthening protection for fish habitat and
water quality in a manner that continues to support
both the tinber and fishing industries.

The current standards for Region IlIl were adopted as
an interim measure in the 1990 revision of the Act.
Under these standards, harvesting can occur up to the
bank of anadronmobus waters on both public and private
| and under sone conditions. Wth the proposed bill,
al | anadronous and high-value resident fish waters are
classified and riparian standards are established for
each cl assification.

The requirenents are tailored to the characteristics
and fish habitat needs of each stream type. A no-
harvest buffer will be required on nost anadronous and
hi gh-val ue resident fish waters. However, al ong
glacial rivers where sone of the nost valuable tinber
occurs, the standards allow harvest of up to half the
| arge white spruce in the |andward half of the buffer.
This allows |andowners to capture sone of the economc
value within the riparian areas while keeping enough
| arge trees to provide woody debris.

This bill is not a wholesale revision of the Act. It
has substantive changes for riparian managenent
standards applying to Region Ill only. Oher technica
revi si ons i ncl ude changes to t he st at ewi de

nonenclature for water body classes to prevent
confusion between water body types in different
regions. The bill also noves definitions of regional
boundaries fromthe regulations to the Act and nmakes a
m nor change to the regional boundary on the Kenai
Peninsula to better mtch the difference between
forest types. Mst forestland in the affected area is
in federal ownership, so there will be mninmal inpact
on ot her | andowners.

SB 88 helps ensure that the FRPA continues to be
certified for conpliance with federal Cean Water Act
and coastal zone nmanagenent requirenents. This neans
that the Act continues to provide 'one-stop shopping'
for the tinber industry with respect to state and
f eder al non- poi nt source pollution and coastal
managenent standar ds.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 20- April 28, 2003



This bill is founded on the best science available
i ncluding an extensive review of existing research and
recommendations of an interdisciplinary Science &
Techni cal Committee. The comittee i ncl uded
experienced field staff from the state resource
agencies and private sector as well as the University
of Al aska and federal scientists.

MR. HOVE offered to answer questions and noted M. Jahnke was
present and Marty Freeman was on |ine to answer questions.

CHAI R OGAN asked M. Jahnke to testify.

MR JEFF JAHNKE, Director of the Dwvision of Forestry,
Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and the presiding officer
for the Board of Forestry, gave the follow ng background on how
this | egislation was devel oped.

This bill is a response to a Board of Forestry request
to review the Forest Practices Act in 1996. W began
that review in Region 1, which is the coastal region
t hat enconpasses nobst of coastal Al aska. This is the
second step. That actually resulted in a change to the
Forest Practices Act in 1999.

The second step of that - we noved to the Interior and

this review was conpleted...in 2001. This is the
second session that this bill has been...brought
f orwar d. W really thank Senator Seekins for

sponsoring this bill

CHAI R OGAN comrented this bill is the result of a consensus that
was wor ked out.

MR. JAHNKE noted nenbers of the fishing industry, fish, wldlife
and tinber scientists, and the environnental conmunity agreed
upon this bill. He continued:

This bill was devel oped the sane way the Region 1 was.
W started with a science conmttee basically that put
together the science of catching the fisheries
managenment and riparian zone nmanagenent. Follow ng
that, an inplenentation group was put together to | ook
at the results of a science group to make sure that
things could be done on the ground - that it would
actually work. In following that, of course the Board

SENATE RES COW TTEE -21- April 28, 2003



of Forestry reviewed it at length and what's before
you is pretty much the result of all three reviews.

A couple of inportant points - it's a science-based
bill. It's a science-based proposal. It has very good
scientific background and it has, like | said earlier

[the support] of a broad range of industry, fisheries,
envi ronnment al groups, the Board of Forestry, etcetera.

This act does three things to help ensure the goal of
the Forest Practices Act. First it provides adequate
protection for fish habitat in water quality and
supports the continuation of healthy tinber and the
fishing industry. Second it helps to ensure that the
For est Practices Act neets the water qual ity
requirenents in the Cean Water Act in the coastal
zone nmanagenent act and that's very inportant. The
third item that's probably worth nentioning is this
bill is, as you heard Marty nention earlier, this bill
is a one-stop shop for forestry activities. It neets
the requirenents of the coastal zone, if in fact they
neet forest practices, and these changes help to
ensure that that continues to be the case.

Having said that, with the Chair's permssion, |1'd ask
Marty to go into the specifics and then we can take
guestions then or we can do it now.

CHAIR OGAN noted that he does not plan to nove SB 88 out of
commttee today and that he would like to give priority to the
peopl e who signed up to testify.

SENATOR ELTON asked if SB 88 is a replica of |ast session's HB
131.

MR. JAHNKE said it is.
CHAI R OGAN t ook public testinony.

MR. ALBERT PAGH told nenbers he and his son have owned and
operated 4 Star Lunber in Fairbanks for 33 years. His father had
portable mlls so he spent his childhood days living in the
forest. He said he can see no reason for this legislation. If
the purpose of SB 88 is to reduce erosion, he has observed that
if trees are left up to a stream bank, the soil under themis
worse off. The stream undercuts the tree, pulling the back roots
and a lot of soil from the bank. Wen trees are cut the sun

SENATE RES COW TTEE -22- April 28, 2003



exposure allows new plants to grow, establishing root systens
and stabilizing the bank. [Mich of M. Pagh's testinony was
i naudi bl e due to transm ssi on problens.]

MR RICK SMERIGIO of Seward stated support for SB 88. He has
been a nmenber of the Board of Forestry for over five years and
watched this bill develop from an idea. He thanked the agencies,
particularly the Division of Forestry and Al aska Departmnent of
Fish and Ganme (ADF&G5), for all of the work they did. Local
residents of the Interior had an opportunity to provide input.
He said HB 131 cane close to passing the Senate |ast year but
the Senate ran out of tinme. He said nost of the testinony the
commttee will hear will be supportive of SB 88. He pointed out
the Board of Forestry is on record in support of this
| egi slation. The requirement to have buffer zones has gained
acceptance in Southeast Al aska because they protect fish and
other riparian values. He believes it is a good idea to apply
the buffer zone requirement to northern waters. He said the
Board of Forestry has taken tours of the affected area in the
Interior. He has seen areas that have been logged to the stream
bank and areas with buffer zones. He believes the areas wth
buffer zones are better served. He stated support for SB 88 and
asked nenbers to take action on it as soon as possible.

CHAI R OGAN agreed that buffer zones are good. He said years ago
he was concerned about the woody debris in a creek behind his
hone but was told by ADF&G that it provides good fish habitat.

MR ERIC PYNE told nenbers he has been involved in the tinber
i ndustry in Fairbanks since 1979.

CHAIR OGAN called an at-ease to address teleconference
transm ssi on probl ens.

MR. PYNE continued his testinony. He has been involved in the
pl anni ng process. During that process, ADF&G stated the buffer
zones would sinply be a starting point and not an end-all. The
Division of Forestry assured him that the buffer zones would be
in regulation and not just a starting point. As long as that is
the fact, he supports the bill as witten.

MS. LESLIE GUSTAFSON, Salcha, said she is an owner of a tinber
harvesting business. Her husband has harvested on the Tanana
River and lived there since 1968. They have been watching this
bill progress. They support SB 88 as is. She explained her
concern is that different segnents have cone to the table; she
does not want to see special interest groups conme along and stop

SENATE RES COW TTEE -23- April 28, 2003



| ogging. She would like to see regulations in place so that
| oggers do not have to address each and every harvest or
redefine plans. She said she is a board nenber of the Al aska
Forest Association. She believes SB 88 will provide consistency
across the state.

MR. ROBERT OIT, Tanana Chiefs Conference (TCC), told nenbers
that TCC supports SB 88. This legislation represents a |ot of
work by many different groups. It protects fish habitat and
wat er quality standards nmandated by the Forest Practices Act.

TAPE 03-35, SIDE A

MR. JAMES V. DREW testifying from Fairbanks, said he reconmends
favorable action by the legislature on SB 88. He said he has
wat ched the changes in the forestry issues in Al aska over 20
years as director of the Agriculture and Forestry Experinent
Station at the University of Al aska. He has also served as a
menber and <chair of the Alaska Reforestation Council. He
explained that riparian areas in Alaska's forests are of
interest to foresters, fishernen, and wldlife managers. The
| ack of reasonable standards for forest managenent within these
riparian areas has led to inefficiencies in managi ng these areas
for wildlife habitat and tinber production. SB 88 was devel oped
from input from two di fferent wor ki ng gr oups: t he
interdisciplinary science and technical commttee; and the
i npl enentation commttee, which involved a lot of people and
di scussion. The Board of Forestry established both of those
commttees. He said the bottomline is that SB 88 neets habitat
requirenents for fish and allows limted harvesting of white
spruce and buffer strips to capture sone of the econom c val ues
Within riparian zones. Last year, HB 131 underwent considerable
review by the natural resources conmttee of the Fairbanks
Chanber of Commerce. That commttee recommended the bill. He
strongly supports SB 88.

M5. JAN DAWE, Al aska Boreal Forest Council director, stated
support for SB 88 because it represents such an exenplary
process. It provides industry and the entire conmunity with the
confidence that the Forest Practices Act is being conpetently
adm nistered for conditions specific to the region north of the
Al aska Range.

MR. CHRI'S STARK, a fisheries biologist on the Board of Forestry,
told menbers he is also representing the environnental community
on the Tanana Valley State Forest. He said he 1is also
representing and working for the Bering Sea Fisheries

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 24- April 28, 2003



Associ ation, Yukon River Fisheries Devel opnent Association, and
a few other small non-profit organizations. He said his
associ ations are happy to support this bill primarily because it
is scientifically based and establishes a buffer zone. However,
the environnmental comunity would like a larger buffer zone
requi renent. SB 88 was a good conpromni se.

CHAI R OGAN announced that with no further participants, public
testinmony was closed. He said that normally he would hold the
bill in commttee longer but this bill was reviewed by both
bodies last year so he would be willing to nove SB 88 from
committee today.

SENATOR SEEKINS said this bill made it through the House and
Senate commttees last year, but in the rush to adjourn, it was
not scheduled for a floor vote in the Senate. It had al nost
unani nous support throughout the entire process. The concerns
expressed are questions that need to be addressed after nore
information is gathered, such as harvesting trees close to a
stream bank. He said the intent of the bill is to provide for
pl anned, orderly growh and developnent in concert wth the
principles of good stewardship. His intent is to build the
tinber industry in a responsible manner.

SENATOR DYSON nmoved SB 88 from commttee wth individua
recommendati ons and attached fiscal note(s).

SENATOR LI NCOLN obj ected for the purpose of discussion.

SENATOR SEEKINS said that rather than hold the bill in
commttee, he is wlling to look at revisions to the |egislation
farther down the |ine.

SENATOR WAGONER expressed concern about the word "prudent" on
page 2, line 31, and asked who will determne what is or isn't
prudent .

MR. JAHNKE informed nenbers that an intense discussion took
pl ace about the word "prudent” when Region 1 was reviewed.
"Prudent” is determined by the Dvision of Forestry in
consultation with the other agencies.

SENATOR LINCOLN noted the word "prudent"” is defined on page 3,
line 26. She then noted that nenbers were told that SB 88 is
identical to HB 131. She asked if HB 131 was anended when it
went through the | egislative process |ast year.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -25- April 28, 2003



MR JAHNKE said it was not anended.

SENATOR LI NCOLN pointed out the definition of "prudent” in the
bill is not hel pful because the definition uses term nology that
is not firm She then withdrew her objection to noving SB 88
fromcomittee, therefore the notion carried.

Wth no further business to come before the commttee, CHAIR
OGAN adj ourned the neeting.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 26- April 28, 2003



